
 

Bastrop Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda February 24, 2022 Page 1 of 2 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda 
City Council Chambers 
1311 Chestnut Street 
Bastrop, TX 78602 
This meeting will be live streamed on the City of 
Bastrop Facebook Page  
(www.facebook.com/bastroptx) and broadcast on Spectrum channel 10 and AT&T U-verse channel 
99.  A recording of the meeting will also be available within 72 hours after the meeting on the 
City’s YouTube channel (Bastrop TX Network) and in the Agendas & Minutes section of the City 
website (www.cityofbastrop.org). 

 

February 24, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. 
 

City of Bastrop Planning & Zoning Commission meetings are available to all persons regardless of 
disability.  If you require special assistance, please contact the Commission Secretary at (512) 332-
8840 or write 1311 Chestnut Street, 78602, or by calling through a T.D.D. (Telecommunication 
Device for the Deaf) to Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, this meeting may be 
convened into closed Executive Session for the purposes of seeking confidential legal advice 
from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

The City of Bastrop reserves the right to reconvene, recess, or realign the Regular Session or 
called Executive Session or order of business at any time prior to adjournment. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 
2. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
At this time, comments will be taken from the audience on any topic.  
 
In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, if a citizen discusses any item not on 
the agenda, the Commission cannot discuss issues raised or make any decision at this 
time.  Instead, city Commissions are limited to making a statement of specific information 
or a recitation of existing policy in response to the inquiry.  Issues may be referred to the 
Staff Liaison for research and possible future action.   

 
It is not the intention of the City of Bastrop to provide a public forum for the embarrassment 
or demeaning of any individual or group.  Neither is it the intention of the Commission to 
allow a member of the public to slur the performance, honesty, and/or integrity of the 
Commission, as a body or any member or members of the Commission, individually or 
collectively, nor any members of the city’s staff.  Accordingly, profane, insulting, or 
threatening language directed toward the Commission and/or any person in the 
Commission’s presence will not be tolerated.   
 

http://www.facebook.com/bastroptx




 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   February 24, 2022      AGENDA ITEM: 3A 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve meeting minutes from the January 27, 2022 meeting of the Planning 
& Zoning Commission. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Nicole Peterson, Planning Technician  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Meeting Minutes  
 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 27, 2022 

Meeting Minutes 

 

1 

 

The City of Bastrop Planning and Zoning Commission met Thursday, January 27, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in 

the Council Chambers located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas 78602.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 
Debbie Moore called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Debbie Moore   Present    
Cynthia Meyer   Present  
Matt Lassen   Absent  
Cheryl Lee   Present   
Greg Sherry    Absent 
Ishmael Harris   Present  
Pablo Serna    Present   
Carrie Caylor   Absent  
Scott Long   Absent  
  
2. CITIZEN COMMENTS  
 
There were no citizen comments. 

  
3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  
 

3A.  Consider action to approve meeting minutes from the December 16, 2021 Planning and Zoning 
Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
Pablo Serna made a motion to approve the December 16, 2021 meeting minutes. Cheryl Lee seconded 
the motion and the motion carried 4-1 with Debbie Moore abstaining her vote since she was not present 
at the December 16, 2021 meeting.  
 

3B. Public hearing and consider action to recommend approval for an amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use designation from Rural Residential to 
Industry for Bastrop Colorado Bend, LLP for 312.591 +/- acres of land out of the A2 Stephen F. 
Austin, to the west of Lovers Lane, located within the City of Bastrop Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, 
and forward the recommendation to the City Council. 

 
Jennifer Bills presented to Commissioners the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan to change the 
Future Land Use designation from Rural Residential to Industry for Bastrop Colorado Bend, LLP for 
312.591 +/- acres of land out of the A2 Stephen F. Austin, to the west of Lovers Lane, located within the 
City of Bastrop Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, and forward the recommendation to the City Council.  
 
Discussion commenced between Staff and Commissioners over the following topics: 

1. Where on the map will the soccer fields be? It’s the dark green square that equals 25 acres.  
2. If this was changed to industrial, what would be acceptable for this lot? The Future Land Use Map 

allows business park offices (large campus sites), warehouses, and food service for employees. 
The idea is not to have hotels or Airbnb’s in this area.  

3. Will there be a lot of connections with the surrounding neighborhood? No, it is intended to be its 
own campus.  



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 27, 2022 

Meeting Minutes 

 

2 

 

4. How much more information will they be providing to the City for approval? Preliminary and Final 
Plats will also need to be submitted in the future.  

5. What plans are being proposed to improve the infrastructure to handle the increase in traffic? The 
TIA is under review at this time and being discussed with TxDOT, most of the impact will be on 
Highway 71 at the intersection of HWY 71 and Lovers Lane.  

6. How many more times will this development be coming in front of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for a hearing? At least one more time.  

 
Debbie Moore opened the public hearing at 6:17 p.m. 
 
Debbie Moore read aloud a concern from Michele Anderson, a resident at 103 Kauai Court. Her concerns 
were about the perimeter road, the construction of the future bridge, sound survey requirements, the 
impact the noise will have on the surrounding neighborhood, and how this development should benefit 
the City and County with allowing them to host certain events a set number of times throughout the year.  
 
Debbie Moore closed the public hearing at 6:20 p.m. 
 
Pablo Serna made a motion to recommend approval for an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan to 
change the Future Land Use designation from Rural Residential to Industry for Bastrop Colorado Bend, 
LLP for 312.591 +/- acres of land out of the A2 Stephen F. Austin, to the west of Lovers Lane, located 
within the City of Bastrop Extraterritorial Jurisdiction to City Council. Cheryl Lee seconded the motion and 
the motion had a vote of 3-2, with Cynthia Meyer and Ishmael Harris against it, therefore no 
recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission was forwarded to Council. 
 

3C.  Public hearing and consider action to recommend approval for an amendment to the 
Transportation Master Plan for the Master Thoroughfare Plan and Street Grid for Bastrop 
Colorado Bend, LLP for 546.364 +/- acres of land out of the A2 Stephen F. Austin, to the west 
of Lovers Lane, located within the City of Bastrop Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, and forward the 
recommendation to the City Council. 

 
Jennifer Bills presented to Commission the amendment to the Transportation Master Plan for the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan and Street Grid for Bastrop Colorado Bend, LLP for 546.364 +/- acres of land out of 
the A2 Stephen F. Austin, to the west of Lovers Lane, located within the City of Bastrop Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction, and forward the recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Discussion commenced between Staff and Commissioners over the following topics: 

1. Was the road discussed at the start of the project? Yes, it is also referenced in the Development 
Agreement.  

2. Is part of the recommendation to have the proposed perimeter road connect to El Camino road? 
Yes, it would connect. However, no construction plans have been submitted at this time.  

3. Could this change affect someone’s house or property? Yes, potentially. 
4. Will this remain a dead-end street until the bridge is built? Yes.  

 
Debbie Moore opened the public hearing at 6:36 p.m. 
 
There were no comments or concerns from citizens.  
 
Debbie Moore closed the public hearing at 6:36 p.m. 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 27, 2022 

Meeting Minutes 

 

3 

 

Pablo Serna made a motion to approve recommendation for an amendment to the Transportation Master 
Plan for the Master Thoroughfare Plan and Street Grid for Bastrop Colorado Bend, LLP for 546.364 +/- 
acres of land out of the A2 Stephen F. Austin, to the west of Lovers Lane, located within the City of 
Bastrop Extraterritorial Jurisdiction to City Council with the condition that the location of the bridge be 
revised not to impact any existing homes. There was no second for the motion, therefore no 
recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission was forwarded to Council.  
 

3D.  Public hearing and consider action to recommend approval for the Bastrop Colorado Bend 
Zoning Concept Scheme, changing the zoning for 312.591 +/- acres out of the Stephen F. Austin 
Survey from P2 Rural to PEC Employment Center and establishing a plan on 312.591 acres, 
located west of Lovers Lane, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas, attached as Exhibit A, and 
forward the recommendation to the City Council. 

 
Jennifer Bills presented to Commissioners the Bastrop Colorado Bend Zoning Concept Scheme, 
changing the zoning for 312.591 +/- acres out of the Stephen F. Austin Survey from P2 Rural to PEC 
Employment Center and establishing a plan on 312.591 acres, located west of Lovers Lane, within the 
city limits of Bastrop, Texas, attached as Exhibit A, and forward the recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Discussion commenced between Staff and Commissioners over the following topics: 

1. Do we currently have any 5 story buildings in the City? No, we currently only have 4 stories within 
the city limits, but 5 stories is now allowed in our P5 Core Place Type.  

2. Was a sound survey conducted for the site? We have no adopted standards for a sound survey, 
and currently excessive noise is regulated under the public nuisance code.  

3. What was the thought process of placing the sound stage close to the River? Brendan McEntee, 
Engineer for CBD, responded all sounds will be enclosed within the building.  

4. What is the purpose of the temporary stage being an amphitheater? The temporary stage is 
shown in the event the studio needs to do outdoor filming. However, it is a temporary stage that 
can be put up and taken down.   

5. Is there a possibility of concerts being held? Yes, there is, and the owner is aware about the noise 
restrictions and how it will need to be contained.  

6. In terms of the sound, would it go under the noise ordinance and stop at 10:00 p.m.? Yes, if they 
plan an event, there is a special noise permit they are required to get, and it has an end time and 
a certain level of decibels the site would be allowed to generate.  

7. Has the applicant agreed to meet all the lighting requirements? Yes, all lights must be shielded, 
have a certain brightness output and be the right temperature of lighting.  

 
Debbie Moore opened the public hearing at 6:54 p.m. 
 
There were no comments or concerns from citizens.  
 
Debbie Moore closed the public hearing at 6:54 p.m.  

 
Pablo Serna made a motion to approve the recommendation for the Bastrop Colorado Bend Zoning 
Concept Scheme, changing the zoning for 312.591 +/- acres out of the Stephen F. Austin Survey from 
P2 Rural to PEC Employment Center and establishing a plan on 312.591 acres, located west of Lovers 
Lane, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas, attached as Exhibit A to City Council. Cheryl Lee seconded 
the motion had a vote of 4-1 with Cynthia Meyer against it, therefore no recommendation from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission was forwarded to Council. 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 27, 2022 

Meeting Minutes 

 

4 

 

3E. Consider action to approve Bastrop Grove Section 3 Lot 7 Final Plat, being 1.112 acres out of 
the Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract No. 98, located south of SH 71, within the city limits of 
Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. 

 
Allison Land presented to Commissioners the Bastrop Grove Section 3 Lot 7 Final Plat, being 1.112 acres 
out of the Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract No. 98, located south of SH 71, within the city limits of Bastrop, 
Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. 
 
There were no comments or questions from the Commissioners.  
 
Pablo Serna made a motion to approve the Bastrop Grove Section 3 Lot 7 Final Plat, being 1.112 acres 
out of the Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract No. 98, located south of SH 71, within the city limits of Bastrop, 
Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. Cynthia Meyer seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

3F. Consider action to approve the Legends Cove, Section Two Final Plat, being 35.228 acres out 
of the Stephen F. Austin Survey, Abstract No. 3, located southwest of Sayers Road, within the 
Statutory Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. 

 
Allison Land presented to Commissioners the Legends Cove, Section Two Final Plat, being 35.228 acres 
out of the Stephen F. Austin Survey, Abstract No. 3, located southwest of Sayers Road, within the 
Statutory Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A.  
 
Discussion commenced between Staff and Commissioners over the following topics: 

1. Where do the 3 roads connect right now? The road roads are currently not developed. 
2. The back piece of land where the three roads join is a field? Yes, it is a field.   
3. What is the plan for the end of the road? All traffic will come out onto Sayers Road, and there will 

be turnarounds until that road stubs out in the future.  
4. Can we assume the property to the North has a different ownership? Yes, it does belong to a 

different property owner.   
5. Are there concerns with the road only having one way out in the event of a fire? Since there will 

only be 20 lots, it does not need a secondary fire exit.  
6. This property is in the ETJ but has met all our requirements? Yes, the plat meets all our 

requirements.  
 
Alexandria Fite, a resident at 188 Sayers Road, spoke stating she has concern over the development of 
Section One of this development, because the applicant did not follow the guidelines for the 
water/wastewater. She mentioned her involvement in several litigations, and that she would like the 
Commissioners to hold off on approving this section of the development.  
 
Discussion commenced between Commissioners and Ms. Fite regarding the details of Legends Cove 
Section One.  
 
Pablo Serna made a motion to approve the Legends Cove, Section Two Final Plat, being 35.228 acres 
out of the Stephen F. Austin Survey, Abstract No. 3, located southwest of Sayers Road, within the 
Statutory Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. Ishmael Harris second 
the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 27, 2022 

Meeting Minutes 

 

5 

 

4. WORKSHOP 
 

4A.  Presentation on Traffic Impact Analysis Best Practices. 
 

Santiago Araque with Kimley Horn gave a presentation on Traffic Impact Analysis to the 
Commissioners. He discussed the following topics: 

1. Policies to deal with Growth 
a. Transportation Funding 
b. Funding options 
c. City Policy Decisions 

2. Trip Generation 
a. Trip Generation Manual – ITE 
b. Example Trip Generation 
c. Trip Threshold Discussion 

3. Traffic Impact Analysis 
a. Pro-Rata Share Considerations 
b. Administrative Side of TIA’s 

4. Other Important Policy Topics 
a. Alternate: Border Street Policy 
b. Interagency Coordination 
c. Proportionality of Requirements 

5. Conclusion 
 
5. UPDATES 
 

5A.  Update on recent City Council actions regarding Planning Department items.  
 
Jennifer Bills presented an update on recent City Council actions regarding Planning Department Items. 

1. The status of the Drainage Master Plan Study Online Survey.  
2. Bastrop Business Industry Park Zoning Concept Scheme was approved by City Council 

on January 25, 2022. 
 

5B. Building and Planning Department Monthly Projects Volume Report.  
 
Jennifer Bills presented the Building and Planning Department monthly Projects Volume Report to the 
Commissioners. There were no comments or questions from Commissioners.  

 
5C. Individual Requests from Planning & Zoning Commissioners that particular items to be listed on 

future agendas (no group discussion allowed).  
 
Jennifer Bills asked the Commissioners if there were any request on particular items they would like to 
see on the future agenda.  
 
The Commission stated they would like to have a one-on-one workshop to go over the B3 Code to get a 
better understanding of the processes, as well as the MyGov permitting process.  
 
 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 27, 2022 

Meeting Minutes 

 

6 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Cynthia Meyer made a motion to adjourn at 8:07 p.m. Ishmael Harris seconded the motion, and the 
motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Debbie Moore, Chair 
 
_______________________ 
Pablo Serna, Vice-Chair 

 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 24, 2022        AGENDA ITEM: 3B 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to approve The Colony MUD 1C Section 8 Preliminary Plat, being 19.546 acres 
out of the Jose Manual Bangs Survey, Abstract No. 5, located north of Sam Houston Drive, within 
the extraterritorial jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Allison Land, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: North of Sam Houston Drive (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage: 19.546 acres 
Legal Description: 19.546 acres of the Jose Manuel Bangs Survey, Abstract 5 
  
Property Owner: Rick Neff/Hunt Communities Bastrop, L.L.C. 
Agent Contact: Crystal Clemons, Carlson, Brigance, and Doering, Inc. 
  
Existing Use: Vacant/Undeveloped 
Existing Zoning: 
Adopted Plan: 

None.  Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction, The Colony MUD 
Fourth Amendment to the Colony MUD Consent Agreement, 
Approved November 5, 2020 

Future Land Use: Neighborhood Residential 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Preliminary Plat for The Colony MUD 1C, Section 
8 (Exhibit A). The plat includes 31 residential lots and 4 non-residential lots (Attachment 1). The 
proposed single-family lots follow the lot standards adopted in the Consent Agreement, as 
amended. An amenity, drainage, landscape, PUE lot and a utility lot are included in the non-
residential lots. 
   
Traffic Impact and Streets 
The Preliminary Plat proposes to take access off Sam Houston Dr via Rainwater Creek Dr, which 
also stubs out to the north for future connection. A loop and cul-de-sac extend off Rainwater Creek 
Dr. Sidewalks will also be built within the development, which will ultimately connect to the existing 
neighborhood trail system. 
 
A traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the overall development of The Colony MUD has been previously 
approved by the City, and the plat is consistent with the numbers for the impact to the existing 
roadways. Improvements along FM 969 have been completed with previous sections, and 
provisions for a future traffic signal will also be provided. 
 



 

 
Utilities 
Water service (domestic and fire) will be provided by The Colony MUD via water line extensions 
from existing infrastructure located on Sam Houston Dr. These lines will be designed according 
to the City’s construction standards, as well as the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s 
(TCEQ) requirements. A Preliminary Infrastructure Plan has been reviewed and approved by 
the City Engineer. This section also includes a utility lot for a water storage tank that provides 
service to this region of The Colony MUD. 
 
Wastewater collection and treatment will also be provided by The Colony MUD. Wastewater 
improvements were included in the approved Preliminary Infrastructure Plan. 
 
Drainage 
Stormwater runoff generated will flow into a detention pond in the eastern portion of the section. 
The pond discharges at pre-developed rates to the north. The drainage plan is using the updated 
rainfall totals of Atlas 14. Additionally, the residential lots will include maximum impervious 
coverage limit that is reflected in the system capacity. A Preliminary Drainage Plan has been 
reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Preliminary Plats are reviewed and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
Compliance with 2036 Comprehensive Plan: 

Future Land Use Plan - Neighborhood Residential:  The Neighborhood Residential 
character area is for single-family residential subdivision development, associated 
amenities such as parks, trails, open spaces and public uses such as schools, fire stations, 
and more.  
 
This plat complies with the Future Land Use Plan, which shows Neighborhood Residential 
in this area. The plat proposes residential lots.  
 
Objective 2.1.2: Exercise greater influence on development patterns and character in the 
Bastrop ETJ. 
 
The City of Bastrop has a Consent Agreement with the Colony Municipal Utility District 
that allows the city to agree to specific land uses and development standards, even though 
the development is not within the city limits. This allows the city to ensure the quality of 
development and future sustainability. 
 
Goal 4.1.1 Provide a greater diversity of housing options in Bastrop while protecting the 
character of the City’s existing neighborhoods. 
 
Through the Consent Agreement, The Colony MUD development includes four different 
single-family lot standards and two multi-family standards.  

  



 

Local Government Code  
Sec. 212.002.  Rules.   
After a public hearing on the matter, the governing body of a municipality may adopt rules 
governing plats and subdivisions of land within the municipality's jurisdiction to promote 
the health, safety, morals, or general welfare of the municipality and the safe, orderly, and 
healthful development of the municipality. 

 
Bastrop adopted subdivision regulations in 1981. The B³ Code, Chapter 1: Subdivision 
outlines the process and requirements for plats within the Bastrop city limits and Extra 
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 

 
Section 212.004 Plat Required 
(a) The owner of a tract of land located within the limits or in the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

of a municipality who divides the tract in two or more parts to lay out a subdivision of 
the tract, including an addition to a municipality, to lay out suburban, building, or other 
lots, or to lay out streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts of the tract intended to 
be dedicated to public use or for the use of purchasers or owners of lots fronting on or 
adjacent to the streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts must have a plat of the 
subdivision prepared. 

 
The applicant has proposed subdividing an undeveloped 19.546-acre tract into 31 
residential lots and 3 non-residential lots. Public improvements within the subdivision 
(streets, drainage, and other utilities) will be dedicated to The Colony Municipal Utility 
District upon their completion.  
 
Sec. 212.010.  Standards for Approval 

(a)  The municipal authority responsible for approving plats shall approve a plat if: 
 (1) it conforms to the general plan of the municipality and its current and future streets, 

alleys, parks, playgrounds, and public utility facilities;  
 

The preliminary plat conforms to the Future Land Use Plan, which is designated 
Neighborhood Residential for this area. 

 
 (2)   it conforms to the general plan for the extension of the municipality and its roads, 

streets, and public highways within the municipality and in its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, taking into account access to and extension of sewer and water mains 
and the instrumentalities of public utilities; 

A traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the overall development of The Colony 
Subdivision has been previously approved by the City, and the plat is consistent 
with the recommendations of that analysis. Improvements along FM 969 were built 
with the previous section and included items such as turning and deceleration 
lanes. Provisions for a future traffic signal have been required by the Texas 
Department of Transportation.  

 (3)   a bond required under Section 212.0106, if applicable, is filed with the municipality; 
and 

 
A fiscal guarantee will be provided for the construction and maintenance of the 
street improvements before any final plats can be recorded.   



 

 
 (4)   it conforms to any rules adopted under Section 212.002. 
 

The preliminary plat complies with the requirements of the adopted B³ Code and 
Consent Agreement. 

 
B³ Code – Chapter 1: Subdivisions 
• Section 1.3.001 Standard Procedure - Platting 

 
Any subdivision requiring the extension of public infrastructure or of more than four lots 
require the approval of a Preliminary Plat, Public Improvement Plan, and a Final Plat. 

 
• Section 1.3.002 Preliminary Plat 

The Preliminary Drainage Plan to determine drainage requirements was approved by the 
City Engineer on October 22, 2021. 
 
The Preliminary Infrastructure Plan for the feasibility of the construction of the subdivision 
improvements was approved by the City Engineer on November 5, 2021. 

 
• Section 1.3.004 Plat Requirements 

The Development Review Committee reviewed the Preliminary Plat for The Colony MUD 
1C, Section 8 for compliance with subdivision and utility standards on January 21, 2022 
and deemed the plat administratively complete. The Planning Director recommends 
approval. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve The Colony MUD 1C Section 8 Preliminary Plat, being 19.546 acres 
out of the Jose Manual Bangs Survey, Abstract No. 5, located north of Sam Houston Drive, within 
the extraterritorial jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Exhibit A: The Colony MUD 1C, Section 8 Preliminary Plat 
• Attachment 1: Location Map 
• Attachment 2: The Colony MUD Land Use Plan 

 







The Colony MUD

Attachment 1
Location Map

¬«71

¬«304

FM 969

FM 1209

W SH 71 FR

WOODLANDS DR
BLAKEY LN

EARHARDT R
D

KATY B LN

1 inch = 300 feet
0 200 400100

Feet

Date: 2/18/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     ³

Subdivision Plat
The Colony MUD 1C Section 8



 

jbills
Rectangle



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 24, 2022        AGENDA ITEM: 3C 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to approve The Colony MUD 1F Section 2 Preliminary Plat, being 32.249 acres 
out of the Jose Manual Bangs Survey, Abstract No. 5, located south of Eight Oaks Drive and west 
of Republic Drive, within the Voluntary Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in 
Exhibit A. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Allison Land, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: North of Sam Houston Drive (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage: 32.249 acres 
Legal Description: 32.249 acres of the Jose Manuel Bangs Survey, Abstract 5 
  
Property Owner: Rick Neff/Hunt Communities Bastrop, L.L.C. 
Agent Contact: Crystal Clemons, Carlson, Brigance, and Doering, Inc. 
  
Existing Use: Vacant/Undeveloped 
Existing Zoning: 
Adopted Plan: 

None.  Voluntary Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction, The Colony MUD 
Fourth Amendment to the Colony MUD Consent Agreement, 
Approved November 5, 2020 

Future Land Use: Neighborhood Residential 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Preliminary Plat for The Colony MUD 1F, Section 
2 (Exhibit A). The plat includes 80 residential lots and 6 non-residential lots (Attachment 1). The 
proposed single-family lots follow the lot standards adopted in the Consent Agreement, as 
amended. One of the non-residential lots is a small park lot. 
   
Traffic Impact and Streets 
The Preliminary Plat proposes extend Eight Oaks Drive and Republic Drive, which are the main 
arterials in this portion of The Colony. The plat includes four residential streets that connect to the 
arterials in addition to 1F Section 1. This section will be gated from the arterial roads. Sidewalks 
will also be built within the development, which will ultimately connect to the existing neighborhood 
trail system. 
 
A traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the overall development of The Colony MUD has been previously 
approved by the City, and the plat is consistent with the numbers for the impact to the existing 
roadways. Improvements along FM 969 have been completed with previous sections, and 
provisions for a future traffic signal will also be provided. 



 

 
 
Utilities 
Water service (domestic and fire) will be provided by The Colony MUD via water line extensions 
from existing infrastructure located on Eight Oaks Dr. These lines will be designed according to 
the City’s construction standards, as well as the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s 
(TCEQ) requirements. A Preliminary Infrastructure Plan has been reviewed and approved by 
the City Engineer.  
 
Wastewater collection and treatment will also be provided by The Colony MUD. Wastewater 
improvements were included in the approved Preliminary Infrastructure Plan. 
 
Drainage 
Stormwater runoff generated in this section flows through a stormwater system that discharges 
into the regional detention pond in The Colony MUD 1C Section 7 to the south. The pond 
discharges at pre-developed rates to the south. The drainage plan is using the updated rainfall 
totals of Atlas 14. Additionally, the residential lots will include maximum impervious coverage limit 
that is reflected in the system capacity. A Preliminary Drainage Plan has been reviewed and 
approved by the City Engineer. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Preliminary Plats are reviewed and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
Compliance with 2036 Comprehensive Plan: 

Future Land Use Plan - Neighborhood Residential:  The Neighborhood Residential 
character area is for single-family residential subdivision development, associated 
amenities such as parks, trails, open spaces and public uses such as schools, fire stations, 
and more.  
 
This plat is outside of the area covered in the Comprehensive Plan, but it complies with 
the Future Land Use Plan as established for the Colony within the Statutory ETJ, which 
shows Neighborhood Residential in this area. The plat proposes residential lots.  
 
Objective 2.1.2: Exercise greater influence on development patterns and character in the 
Bastrop ETJ. 
 
The City of Bastrop has a Consent Agreement with the Colony Municipal Utility District 
that allows the city to agree to specific land uses and development standards, even though 
the development is not within the city limits. This allows the city to ensure the quality of 
development and future sustainability. 
 
Goal 4.1.1 Provide a greater diversity of housing options in Bastrop while protecting the 
character of the City’s existing neighborhoods. 
 
Through the Consent Agreement, The Colony MUD development includes four different 
single-family lot standards and two multi-family standards.  

  



 

Local Government Code  
Sec. 212.002.  Rules.   
After a public hearing on the matter, the governing body of a municipality may adopt rules 
governing plats and subdivisions of land within the municipality's jurisdiction to promote 
the health, safety, morals, or general welfare of the municipality and the safe, orderly, and 
healthful development of the municipality. 

 
Bastrop adopted subdivision regulations in 1981. The B³ Code, Chapter 1: Subdivision 
outlines the process and requirements for plats within the Bastrop city limits and Extra 
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 

 
Section 212.004 Plat Required 
(a) The owner of a tract of land located within the limits or in the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

of a municipality who divides the tract in two or more parts to lay out a subdivision of 
the tract, including an addition to a municipality, to lay out suburban, building, or other 
lots, or to lay out streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts of the tract intended to 
be dedicated to public use or for the use of purchasers or owners of lots fronting on or 
adjacent to the streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts must have a plat of the 
subdivision prepared. 

 
The applicant has proposed subdividing an undeveloped 32.249-acre tract into 80 
residential lots and 6 non-residential lots. Public improvements within the subdivision 
(streets, drainage, and other utilities) will be dedicated to The Colony Municipal Utility 
District upon their completion.  
 
Sec. 212.010.  Standards for Approval 

(a)  The municipal authority responsible for approving plats shall approve a plat if: 
 (1) it conforms to the general plan of the municipality and its current and future streets, 

alleys, parks, playgrounds, and public utility facilities;  
 

The preliminary plat conforms to the Future Land Use Plan, which is designated 
Neighborhood Residential for this area. 

 
 (2)   it conforms to the general plan for the extension of the municipality and its roads, 

streets, and public highways within the municipality and in its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, taking into account access to and extension of sewer and water mains 
and the instrumentalities of public utilities; 

A traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the overall development of The Colony 
Subdivision has been previously approved by the City, and the plat is consistent 
with the recommendations of that analysis. Improvements along FM 969 were built 
with the previous section and included items such as turning and deceleration 
lanes. Provisions for a future traffic signal have been required by the Texas 
Department of Transportation.  

 (3)   a bond required under Section 212.0106, if applicable, is filed with the municipality; 
and 

 
A fiscal guarantee will be provided for the construction and maintenance of the 
street improvements before any final plats can be recorded.   



 

 
 (4)   it conforms to any rules adopted under Section 212.002. 
 

The preliminary plat complies with the requirements of the adopted B³ Code and 
Consent Agreement. 

 
B³ Code – Chapter 1: Subdivisions 
• Section 1.3.001 Standard Procedure - Platting 

 
Any subdivision requiring the extension of public infrastructure or of more than four lots 
require the approval of a Preliminary Plat, Public Improvement Plan, and a Final Plat. 

 
• Section 1.3.002 Preliminary Plat 

The Preliminary Drainage Plan to determine drainage requirements was approved by the 
City Engineer on November 12, 2021. 
 
The Preliminary Infrastructure Plan for the feasibility of the construction of the subdivision 
improvements was approved by the City Engineer on December 16, 2021. 

 
• Section 1.3.004 Plat Requirements 

The Development Review Committee reviewed the Preliminary Plat for The Colony MUD 
1F, Section 2 for compliance with subdivision and utility standards on February 7, 2022 
and deemed the plat administratively complete. The Planning Director recommends 
approval. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve The Colony MUD 1F Section 2 Preliminary Plat, being 32.249 acres 
out of the Jose Manual Bangs Survey, Abstract No. 5, located south of Eight Oaks Drive and west 
of Republic Drive, within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Exhibit A: The Colony MUD 1F, Section 2 Preliminary Plat 
• Attachment 1: Location Map 
• Attachment 2: The Colony MUD Land Use Plan 

 







The Colony MUD

EIGHT OAKS DR

SPANISH TRL

PACK SADDLE DR

W
ILLIAM

 H
ER

SEE D
R

LO
YO

SA
 S

T

OLD WINDMILL LN

W
IN

C
H

ESTER
 R

D

Attachment 1
Location Map

¬«71

¬«304

FM 969

FM 1209

W SH 71 FR

WOODLANDS DR
BLAKEY LN

EARHARDT R
D

KATY B LN

1 inch = 400 feet
0 250 500125

Feet

Date: 2/18/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   ³

Subdivision Plat
The Colony MUD 1F Section 2



 

jbills
Rectangle



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 24, 2022        AGENDA ITEM: 3D 
 
TITLE:  

Consider action on a Neighborhood Regulating Plan on 3.973 acres of Bastrop Town Tract, A11, 
located at 2801 E. Loop 150 within the City of Bastrop Texas as attached in Exhibit A as The Hill 
Food Truck Park & Glamping Community Neighborhood Regulating Plan. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Director of Planning & Development 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: 2801 E. Loop 150 (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage: 3.973 acres 
Legal Description: 3.973 acres of Bastrop Town Tract A11 
  
Property Owner: Michael & Deborah Jones 
Agent Contact: James Garon, James Garon & Associates 
  
Existing Use: One vacant building 
Existing Zoning: P-5, Core 
Character District: Mayfest Hill 
Development Patterns 
Allowed: 

 
Traditional Neighborhood, Village Center, or Clustered Land 

Future Land Use: Neighborhood Commercial 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Neighborhood Regulating Plan (NRP) for 3.973 
acres of mostly vacant land, which includes an unoccupied building that was previously part of 
the Rattlesnake Inn (Exhibit A).  
 
The Neighborhood Regulating Plan addresses compliance with the B³ Code lot configuration, 
block requirements, and lot occupation (parking/building locations). 
 
When Staff cannot approve the Plan because of significant deviations or departures from the 
regulations, the applicant can appeal to the Planning & Zoning Commission for approval.  In this 
instance the Director has opted to directly forward the NRP for Commission consideration. 
 
The NRP for this lot proposes extending one new public street from Chestnut/Loop 150 to the 
existing ROW that connects to Arena Drive.  The conceptual site layout shows adding a 
commercial building behind the existing structure, a mobile food court at the front, and a short-
term rental area accommodating RVs and cabins at the rear. 
 
This land is located within the Bastrop County Lost Pines Habitat Conservation Plan (LPHCP) 
area.  Property in this area must follow the regulations of the LPHCP by permitting through 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Bastrop County or apply directly to the U.S. Department of Fish and Wildlife for permitting.  To 
permit through the County, the site must meet impervious cover restrictions and the property 
cannot be platted. 
 
In the diagram below, the blue lines show the existing complete street network in the area.  Many 
of the existing rights-of-way are not built and the roads that are built do not connect into the block 
pattern.  The green line shows the proposed new street that will be provided in The Hill NRP, 
which will complete one smaller block with an approximate 2000-foot perimeter.   
 

 
The NRP as proposed contains several deviations from the codes, such as:  

· Development does not comply with the adopted public frontage plans (no sidewalks, street 
trees along Chestnut/Loop 150, no sidewalks along new street). 

· Contains parking second layer, which is prohibited (northeast corner). 

· Does not meet the 80% lot occupation requirement (buildings place along street front) 

· Exceeds block length and block perimeter requirements. 
 

The applicant provided the following justification for not providing sidewalks: “A major landscape 
project was recently completed to the east of our site. No sidewalks were required, thus we have 
nothing to connect. There are dozens of acres of undeveloped land to the west of us, there are 
no sidewalks to connect. We request that sidewalks not be required at this time with the possibility 
of future connectivity opportunities once development presents the ability to connect.”   

 
The sites to the west are undeveloped and will also be required to provide sidewalks. Adding 
sidewalks along Chestnut/Loop 150 and the new street will provide pedestrian access to Mayfest 
Park and Bastrop State Park. 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Due to the restrictions of the LPHCP, staff recommends approval of the Neighborhood Regulating 
Plan, with the following conditions: 
 

· Sidewalks and street trees are provided along Chestnut/Loop 150 and the new street. 

· The parking shown in the northeast corner be moved into the third layer. 

· An access easement be extended from the new public street to the property to the west 
to provide cross-connectivity between lots.   

· The development process (requiring a subdivision plat) may be varied as long as the 
proper ROW and easements are provided by separate instrument, and it will keep the site 
in compliance with the LPHCP (must get permit from the County or U.S. Fish and Wildlife). 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
Compliance with the Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code: 
 
SEC 3.2.002 NEIGHBORHOOD REGULATING PLAN  

(a) All areas within the City of Bastrop more than 3.4 acres that do not require Place Type 
Zoning changes will require a Neighborhood Regulating Plan. Place Types shall be 
assigned through the creation of a Neighborhood Regulating Plan.  

 
This area is 3.973 acres, exceeding 3.4 acres. 

 
(b) The process for creating a Neighborhood Regulating Plan is described in the B³ Technical 

Manual Article 2.3 - Neighborhood Regulating Plan.  
 
The applicant submitted the existing development as consideration for review. 

 
(c) Neighborhood Regulating Plans must provide the Street Types, location and sizes of 

proposed Streets consistent with the Mandatory Street Network, and the Block 
requirements of this Code. It must contain Place Type allocation as defined in Section 
3.2.001.b and be reflective of Section 4.2.001 Character District Descriptions & additional 
Standards. 
 

The submitted NRP does not meet the block and street grid requirement (330-foot by 330-
foot blocks).  The site is in the Lost Pines Habitat Conservation Plan area, requiring restricted 
land disturbance.  The proposed street connection is in the area of the site least likely to 
impact the Houston Toad. 
 
(d) A Neighborhood Regulating Plan must adhere to the Pedestrian Shed Map, Sec. 3.3.001, 

and must be reviewed and comply with the percentages of 3.2.002(b). 
 

The street and block layout in the Pedestrian Shed exhibit does not meet 720-foot and 330-
foot block requirement in the B³ Code.  However, given the Geographically Sensitive nature 
of the site, the one road extension will provide additional connectivity in the area while allowing 
the site to remain in compliance with the Houston Toad LPHCP requirements. 
 

ARTICLE 3.3 PEDESTRIAN SHED 

(a) In TND developments, every 1/4 mile radius or “Pedestrian Shed,” i.e. approx. 80 
acres or 6 Farm Lots, is to contain a mix/allocation of Place Types that reflect the 
Character District. Measuring Development by the Pedestrian Shed will ensure 
walkable neighborhoods are created. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

(b) The Pedestrian Shed is the area encompassed by the walking distance from a town 
or neighborhood center. They are often defined as the area covered by a 5-minute 
walk (about 0.25 miles or 1,320 feet) from the center. 

(c) Pedestrian Sheds in VCD or CLD Development Patterns vary in size and are 

prescribed in Article 5.2 Development Patterns Standards. 

 
The Mayfest Hill Character District allows Traditional Neighborhood Development, Village 
Center, and Cluster Land Development.  The NRP has not defined a specific development 
pattern used.  The new street and an additional internal access easement will provide a hybrid 
between the TND and Clustered Land Development Patterns.  The sites to the west are 
undeveloped and will also be required to provide sidewalks. Adding sidewalks along 
Chestnut/Loop 150 and the new street will provide pedestrian access to Mayfest Park and 
Bastrop State Park 
 

SEC. 4.2.001 CHARACTER DISTRICTS DESCRIPTIONS & ADDITIONAL STANDARDS 

(10) The Lost Pines District - The Lost Pines has special geographic features, such as the 
stand of Loblolly Pines that is more than 100 miles from similar forests. Additionally, the 
towering trees and sandy soil in this district provides an optimal environment for the 
Houston Toad. The rolling hills provide breathtaking vistas and deep valleys that provide 
an opportunity for clustered developments that will preserve the natural environment while 
allowing urban neighborhoods to interact with nature.  

 

A. Development must comply with the Standards and processes within the Lost Pines 
Habitat Conservation Plan, as amended. 

 
The development as proposed can comply with the requirements of the Lost Pines Habitat 
Conservation Plan. 
 

SEC. 4.2.003 NEIGHBORHOOD REGULATING PLAN BY CHARACTER DISTRICT 
(a) Multiple Place Type change requests submitted at one time within each Character 

District shall be reviewed collectively. 

No Place Type zoning district changes are being requested. 

(b) Multiple Neighborhood Regulating Plans submitted at one time shall be reviewed 

collectively to evaluate phasing, infrastructure demands, public safety, and Drainage 

impacts. 

 

This is the only NRP currently under review. 

Compliance with 2036 Comprehensive Plan: 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) – The Neighborhood Commercial character area is intended 
for lands that are to be developed for nonresidential uses that are of an appropriate use, 
scale, and design that is compatible with abutting or nearby residential uses. These 
developments typically occupy much smaller footprints, use less signage, have more 
landscaping, and deemphasize or screen parking in a manner that sets the areas apart 
from typical large scale or corridor commercial developments. In some cases, 
neighborhood commercial uses may be included as part of a larger planned development 
within residential character areas. 
 

· Design new neighborhood commercial uses in a manner that matches the quality 
and character of existing or future residential development the use abuts. 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

· De-emphasize parking in neighborhood commercial developments by locating 
parking spaces on the side rather than the front of the property. Require at least 
one (1) pedestrian entrance to be oriented toward the street. These combined 
features help to maintain the residential character of the overall area by placing 
more focus on building rather than the parking. 

· Construct sidewalks along all public and private rights-of-way and include a 
designated and safe sidewalk connection to the main entrance of the building. 
 

The proposed development, with staff recommended conditions, complies with the FLUP 
character area. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve with conditions, a Neighborhood Regulating Plan on 3.973 acres of 
Bastrop Town Tract, A11, located at 2801 E. Loop 150 within the City of Bastrop Texas as 
attached in Exhibit A as The Hill Food Truck Park & Glamping Community Neighborhood 
Regulating Plan. 

· Sidewalks and street trees are provided along Chestnut/Loop 150 and the new street. 

· The parking shown in the northeast corner be moved into the third layer. 

· An access easement be extended from the new public street to the property to the west 
to provide cross-connectivity between lots.  

· The development process (requiring a subdivision plat) may be varied as long as the 
proposed ROW and easements are provided by separate instrument, and it will keep the 
site in compliance with the LPHCP (must get permit from the County or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife).  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

· Exhibit A: The Hill Food Truck Park & Glamping Community Neighborhood Regulating 
Plan document 

· Attachment 1:  Location Map 

· Attachment 2:  Applicant Project Description Letter 

· Attachment 3:  Lost Pines Habitat Conservation Plan Letter 





¬«21

¬«150

ARENA DR

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 L

E
G

IO
N

 D
R

Attachment 1
Location Map

¬«21

¬«71

¬«150

¬«95

¬«71
E SH 71 FR

FARM ST

A
R

E
N

A
 D

R
JASPER ST

P
IT

T
 S

T
PARK ROAD 1A

LOST PINES AVE

INDUSTRY DR

SPRING ST

PINE ST

WALNUT ST

M
A

JE
S

T
IC

 P
IN

E
 D

R

E SH 71 FR

1 inch = 150 feet

0 100 20050

Feet

Date: 2/18/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic

data is limited and should be used for information

/planning purposes only.  This data does not 

replace surveys conducted by registered Texas

land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"

verification of zoning, land use classification, or

 other classification set forth in local, state, or

federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,

nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty

of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,

 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 

accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would

not infringe upon privately owned rights.     ³
Neighborhood Regulating Plan

The Hill



F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 2  

 
City of Bastrop 
Planning Department 
1311 Chestnut Street 
Bastrop, TX 78602 
 
 
 
RE:  2801  E .  Loop  150 ;  Parce l  26814  
 
 
PROJE C T  DESCR IPT ION LETT ER 
 
The  s i t e  i s  c u r ren t l y  3 .973  ac res  l oc a ted  on  t he  ex i t  r amp  f r om S ta te  
H ighway  21  &  Loop  150  on to  Loop  150 .  The re  i s  an  ex i s t i ng  s t r uc tu re ,  
f o rme r l y  us ed  as  a  s e rv i c e  s ta t i on ,  l o c a ted  on  t he  p rope r t y .  The  s t r uc tu re  
has  been  pa r t i a l l y  r epa i r ed  and  renov a ted .  The  p rope r t y  i s  o the rw i s e  un -
dev e loped .  The  s i t e  i s  p ropos ed  t o  be  dev e loped  i n  t h ree  phas es .  
 
 
PRO POS ED DE VE LOPM EN T 
 
PHASE O NE:  Phas e  One  dev e lopmen t  w i l l  c ons i s t  o f  r epa i r  and  
renov a t i on  o f  t he  ex i s t i ng  s t r uc tu re  i n t o  a  s ma l l  r e t a i l  s pac e ,  w i t h  pa rk i ng  
and  c ons t ruc t i on  o f  a  s hop  &  s to rage  bu i l d i ng .  
 
PHASE T WO:  Pha s e  Two  dev e lopmen t  w i l l  c ons i s t  o f  cons t ruc t i ng  f ood  
t r uc k  pad  s i t es ,  pa rk i ng  and  a  c ov e red  f ood  c ou r t  a rea .  
 
PHASE T HREE:  P has e  Th ree  dev e lopmen t  w i l l  c ons i s t  o f  seve ra l  t i n y  
home  /  c ab ins  be ing  p l ac ed  on  t he  p rope r t y  a long  w i t h  R .V .  s pac es  f o r  
s ho r t  t e rm  c amp in g  and  s tay s .  
 
PRO POS ED AC CE SS  
 
Pr ima ry  access  i s  f r om an  ex i s t i ng  30 ’  d r i v eway  f r om E .  Loop  150  i n t o  t he  
p rope r t y .  An  ex i s t i ng  d r i v eway  wes t  o f  t he  p r ima ry  d r i v eway  w i l l  be  
remov ed .  A  30 ’  r oadway  i s  be i ng  p ropos ed  t o  c onnec t  t o  t he  ex i s t i ng  
d r i v eway  and  c ros s  t he  t r ac t  f o r  a  f u t u re  c onnec t i on  t o  A rena  D r i v e .  
 
I n t e rna l l y  t he re  i s  a  20 ’  d r i ve  p roposed  f o r  acc es s  t o  t he  c ab ins  and  RV  
s pac es .  Pa rk i ng  and  d r i v es  a re  p ropos ed  f o r  t he  f ood  t r uc k  a rea  and  
re ta i l  a rea .  
 
A l l  r oads  and  d r i v es  a re  be ing  p ropos ed  f o r  a  c ompac ted  c rus hed  
l imes tone  bas e  and  dec ompos ed  g ran i t e  r oadway  s u r f ac e .  
 

JAMES E. GARON 
& ASSOCIATES, INC. 
P R O F E S S I O N A L  L A N D  S U R V E Y O R S  
&  C I V I L  E N G I N E E R S  

1 8 5  M c A l l i s t e r  R o a d  
B a s t r o p ,  T e x a s  7 8 6 0 2  
5 1 2 - 3 0 3 - 4 1 8 5  
F i r m  R e g .  # 1 0 0 5 8 4 0 0  
&  F - 2 0 3 6 8  
j g a r o n @ a u s t i n . r r . c o m  



l  Page 2  February 21, 2022 

 
 
PRO POS ED UT IL IT IES:  
 
Wate r  s e r v i c e  w i l l  be  p rov i ded  by  t he  C i t y  o f  Bas t rop .  
 
Was tewa te r  s e r v i ce  w i l l  be  p rov i ded  by  t he  C i t y  o f  Bas t rop  t h rough  an  on -
s i t e  l i f t  s ta t i on  and  o f f - s i t e  f o r c e  ma in  c onnec t i ng  t o  an  ex i s t i ng  
was tewa te r  manho le  l oc a ted  a t  t he  i n t e r s ec t i on  o f  Am er i c an  Leg ion  D r i ve  
and  A rena  D r i v e .  
 
E l ec t r i c  se r v i c e  w i l l  be  p rov ided  by  Bas t rop  Power  &  L i gh t .  
 
 
 
Submi t t ed  by :  
 
 
J ames  E .  Ga ron  
Reg i s te red  P ro fes s i ona l  Land  Su rv eyo r   
Co \Bas t rop \Su rv ey s \Bas t rop  Town  T r  A -11 \Runk le \ j ones  



 

BASTROP COUNTY 

LOST PINES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN         
                      
 
Cari Croft, LPHCP Administrator         

211 Jackson, Bastrop, Texas 78602   512.332.7284 (Phone 512-332-7284   Cari.Croft@co.bastrop.tx.us 
             

 
 
February 11, 2022 
 
 
Dear Mrs. Jones: 
 
I wanted to provide you with information on Bastrop County’s Federal Permit for Incidental Take. 
While your property is located within the known and potential habitat of the endangered Houston toad 
and is also within the plan area of the Lost Pines Habitat Conservation Plan, we would not be able to 
permit the property if it were replatted.   
 
The county’s Endangered Species – Incidental Take Permit TE-113500-0 issued by the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS) prohibits the county from issuing Construction Certificates (Incidental Take) 
for commercial construction on lots or tracts that were subdivided after October 1, 2003,  unless they 
comply with the Conservation Subdivision Guidelines described in Appendix C of our permit. 
 
Unfortunately, your property could not be developed as a Conservation Subdivision because it does not 
meet the minimum lot size requirements.  A property must be a minimum of 10 acres to be developed as 
a Conservation Subdivision.  As a result, any development would have to be referred to USFWS for an 
individual consultation.  Please contact me with any questions or concerns you may have.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Cari Croft 
LPHCP Administrator 
 
 


	_02-24-22  Posted Meeting Agenda
	3A - 1 Meeting Minute Staff Report 01.27.22
	3A - 2 Meeting Minutes 01.27.2022 - DRAFT
	3B - The Colony MUD 1C Section 8 Preliminary Plat
	3B - 1 The Colony 1C Section 8 Preliminary Plat Staff Report
	3B - 2 Exhibit A - The Colony MUD 1C Section 8 Preliminary Plat
	3B - 3 Location Map - The Colony MUD 1C Section 8
	3B - 4 Attachment 2 - The Colony MUD Land Use Plan

	3C - The Colony MUD 1F Section 2 Preliminary Plat
	3C - 1 The Colony 1F Section 2 Preliminary Plat Staff Report
	3C - 2 Exhibit A - The Colony MUD 1F Section 2 Preliminary Plat
	3C - 3 Location Map - The Colony MUD 1F Section 2
	3C - 4 Attachment 2 - The Colony MUD Land Use Plan

	3D - The Hill Neighborhood Regulating Plan
	3D - 1 Staff Report - The Hill NRP
	Exhibit A - The Hill Food Truck Park & Glamping Community NRP
	Attachment 1 - Location Map - The Hill
	Attachment 2 - Applicant Project Description Letter
	Attachment 3 - Lost Pines Habitat Conservation Plan Letter




